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Campaign for Southern Equality, et al. v. Bryant et al., No. 3:14-cv-818 (S.D. Miss.)

Dear Governor Bryant, Attorney General Hood and Registrar Moulder:

On behalf of our client Campaign for Southern Equality, one of the

plaintiffs in the above-captioned matter, we write concerning the implications of House

Bill No. 1523 (“HB 1523”), the so-called “Protecting Freedom of Conscience from
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Government Discrimination Act,” signed into law by Governor Bryant on April 5, 2016
(“HB 1523”).

More specifically, on July 1, 2015, United States District Judge Carlton
W. Reeves issued a permanent injunction ordering that “the State of Mississippi and all
its agents, officers, employees, and subsidiaries . . . are permanently enjoined from
enforcing Section 263 A of the Mississippi Constitution and Mississippi Code Section 93-
1-1(2)” (the “July 2015 injunction”). Mississippi Code Section 93-1-1(2) provided that
“[alny marriage between persons of the same gender is prohibited and null and void from
the beginning.” As a result, the July 2015 injunction requires that Mississippi, in
accordance with the dictates of the United States Constitution, treat any gay or lesbian
couple that seeks to marry the same as any straight couple that seeks to do so.

Given the mandatory and permanent nature of Judge Reeves’ injunction,
we have serious concerns about compliance with the July 2015 injunction in light of the
recent enactment of HB 1523. Among other things, HB 1523 purports to enable “[a]ny
person employed or acting on behalf of the state government who has authority to
authorize or license marriages”—persons who are already subject to the Court’s July
2015 injunction—to recuse themselves if, based on certain specifically identified
“sincerely held religious beliefs,” they wish to refuse to license marriages for gay and
lesbian Mississippians. § 3(8)(a). Such “sincerely held religious beliefs” include,
according to the statute, the belief that “[m]arriage is or should be recognized as the
union of one man and one woman.” HB 1523 further provides that any such person who
recuses herself in this manner must ensure that doing so will not “impede[] or delay” the
licensing of any marriage. Significantly, however, HB 1523 is absolutely silent as to how
the right of all Mississippians who seek to legally marry, including gay men and lesbians,
will be protected under this new “recusal” system.

Accordingly, in order to ensure that the Court’s permanent injunction is
fully complied with, we request that you immediately provide us with: (1) notices for
any individual who has filed recusal notices pursuant to HB 1523; (2) a full and complete
explanation of all steps that each individual seeking recusal (or any person acting on
behalf of that individual, including in a supervisory capacity) will take to ensure that gay
and lesbian couples are not impeded or delayed when seeking to marry in the relevant
county; and (3) whether the individual seeking recusal intends to continue issuing
marriage licenses to straight couples, while at the same time refusing to participate in
issuing licenses to gay and lesbian couples. We further request that you agree to provide
us with this same information in connection with any clerks who seek to recuse
themselves in the future within one (1) week after such information becomes available.
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Please let us know no later than May 2, 2016 whether you will comply
with the above request, either in whole or in part, so we can be in a position to evaluate
whether we will need to seek further relief from the Court.

Sincerely,

FRUIAK——

Roberta A. Kaplan

cC: Hon. Carlton W. Reeves
Paul E. Barnes, Esq. (counsel for Attorney General Hood)
Justin L. Matheny, Esq. (counsel for Attorney General Hood)

Drew Snyder, Esq. (counsel for Governor Bryant)
Rob McDuff, Esq.



